The Boundaries of St.Pauls Farish, Poynton

K /\-l Porr SHRiGLEY

Version 2

A
(]

I

149
-

T
Ly
e

|

BB
-~
wad (I

n

LNEIL
BT —

SILVER JUBILEE

\\H J\\ vana il

—_

k\




The Story
ol St. Pauls

Poynton

by
Wilfred Jukka

September

1957 To commemorate
the SILVER JUBILEE
of the Erection

of St. Pauls
as a Parish.

September
1982

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The author wishes to thank all who helped in thiéing of these
pages, especially Mrs Dolan, Mr Roy Dudley, Fr Vigtaam, Mr & Mrs
Derbyshire and Miss K Morris who put him in touckimthem; Mr &

Mrs White and their daughter & Husband Mr B. Isheod who did the
research on the documents of around 1940, Mrs ByHeino did the
research on those linked with Fr Hurley’s days hasewell as going
through all the Notice Books and News-sheets dined’arish began;
Miss Doyle, Mrs Shuker, Mrs Lloyd, Mrs Bennett ahdir two Sisters
whom | met in Bredbury, Mrs McDonough; Mr P Blaak his photos,
Mrs Flitcroft for her research in the librariesRdynton and Manchester,
both Mrs Clayton, Mr F Rochford, the Parish CldtkHurley and Fr
Peters; Mr J Marren for lending typewriter, ribb@msl paper, Mr J Carter
for paper, Mr G Turnbull for the map of the Pargsid the work involved
in discovering the exact boundaries, Mr A Bowersdibthe other
drawings and Mrs W Westwood for all the typing.

39



the early history of Poynton and promised to findHer information and
even some old photos. Then on 3 August | eventualy able to track
down the mysterious Salesian Priest who, | was taldw a lot about the
evacuee children in Poynton. Through him | realigedhe first time that
the Story of St Paul’'s Church, as opposed to thteoParish, begins not in
Hazel Grove, as | had always imagined, but in ShEeleart, Gorton. Not
long afterwards, via Mrs Isherwood. and Miss Kathléorris, who as a
child had been evacuated here, | met Mrs Derbysimrevacuee-teacher
with the Gorton children. Then the White family wineed in the Shop told
me their story, and finally Fr Hurley wrote and kp@n the phone about
his story.

Through these lucky breaks and through some readidgnuch work |
was able to piece this Story together. What | haxtten here is chiefly
important because it is just in time to save atlsame of the Story, some
that would soon have been lost for ever. | am thatthere are many flaws
and. there are possibly some errors in what | kautéen, but the basic
story is, I think, true. If any reader spots a akstor notices an omission |
hope he or she will let me know. | am opening aspdile entitled, “The
History of St Paul's.” In it there will be, besid#gs “Story”, all the
corrections | hope it will evoke. This can onlythe beginning. The next
time it is written it should be much improved, It depends on you, the
readers !
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INTRODUCTION

The Parish of St. Paul’s, Poynton, takes in thelgvbbPoynton-with-
Worth and Higher Poynton, as well as those parwaddford and
Adlington which are indicated on the map found lo@ inside cover of this
book. The map is based on the document sent byBisturphy to Fr.
Lynch on 15th. February 1959, now in the Preshykdigs. It is a parish of
the Catholic Church, and what follows, deals ndhwvle whole history of
the district, but only with those details in it thare linked closely with the
Catholic Faith and its adherents in this area. Tétery”, incomplete and
unscholarly, is written to mark the Silver Jubitédehe foundation of St.
Paul’s Parish in September 1957.

ITS ANCIENT CONTEXT... TILL 1939

From ancient times until the beginning of the reetth century there
were, as far as is known, very few people livinghis district. It was
formed part of the Forest of Macclesfield. This methat long ago it was
doubtless thickly wooded, but for many centuriegrdythe Middle Ages it
consisted mainly of rough pasture land interspevgddfrequent trees. It
was used mainly for hunting by the privileged fetwonowned the land.
These built themselves splendid residences witblygvarks and they had
large numbers of retainers to act as servantsalubk after their property.

It is believed that there are traces of an old Roroad under the
present Meadway Estate, but what is more certdhmais from early
Roman times when the Christian Faith first camihése lands until the
reformation, everybody in this whole area and ierg\ther part of
England was Catholic, except for the invading pagamo eventually
became Catholics too if they stayed long enough.

For that reason the most ancient church in thia &ref great interest to
us. It was Poynton Chapel which we know, from éxgstilocuments, was
already here before the year 1312. It was situa¢ed Poynton Pool quite
close to the present junction of South Park Damd Towers Road. It was
small but beautiful, with lovely stained glass wimg. It served the gentry
and the ordinary people of Poynton, Worth and Womdlflt was dedicated
to Our Lady and it remained a Catholic churchatilbut 1600. It was
rebuilt in 1789 and then dedicated to St. Georgeefthe present church
of St. George was built about half a mile away868 the ancient chapel
was pulled down. An interesting little fact is thla¢ present Parish Church
is called “St. Mary’'s” on the brass plate in itsifmlation stone, because of
its link with the old chapel. Norbury Chapel whistood just outside the
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THE EPILOGUE September 1982

The preceding pages really bring this “Story oP&tl's” to the end of
what has actually happened and to what we hopéwilhe Silver Jublee
Celebrations on 12 September 1982.

At first we were going to have everything, the Massd the Social
events, in our School because of parking and catefine Social
celebrations will still be there, but not the dpiail celebrations. For the
Social Mrs Enid. Parrott and Mrs Neta Redman, stpddoy many
helpers, plan to give a free buffet to which evedgin the Parish is
invited. This will be followed by a Concert, thentes-piece of which will
be a short Musical about St Paul composed spedigliur new Deputy-
Head, Mr lan Orry. The spiritual celebrations vl in Church, because
as a result of this “Story” we now realise that ¢ihek
Cinema-turned-Church is the heart and the centadl dfis “Story of St
Paul’s” and that the Jubilee Mass just had to td&ee there. By that time
we hope to have a double-glazed, sliding windovkitog down from the
old Projection-room on to the main altar. The wiwdaill be a help to the
Sunday-time children at the 10.30 Mass in the futurd possibly at other
Masses to parents with children. It will also béphd if ever we have too
many people to fit in our church. Mrs Drinkwatedadvirs Neate have
promised to decorate the “Upper-room” for us, whghrgent after the
extensive repairs it has recently undergone.

We are delighted to know that Bishop Gray will,tbat day, be
making his first visit to our Parish; and that Rurtéy will also be here
and, we hope, Fr Lynch, together with many priésis the Deanery; as
well as Fr Cohn Doyle who is almost a native of itoy and Fr Harry
Stratton who is at least a co-opted member of ausR. The new
Provincial of the Montfort Fathers has promiseddme, and we have in-
vited the Salesian priests too. We hope espectaltyFr Wrangham will
be here, to revive his memories of the Evacuee.days

This is being written at the end of August ‘82.tA¢ beginning of this
month | knew hardly anything about the history of/Rton or about the
Story of St Paul’s. | had asked for information @hdtos both in Poynton
Post and in our news-sheets, but the only sigmifioasponse by the early
days of August had come from Mrs Dolan. She hattewisome of her
memories and found some of her photos. | was fgslinnned by the
news that the relevant Notice Books in St Petegsawnissing, and | was
beginning to give up hope of finding anything wonthile. Then | had a
number of unexpected breaks. First, Mr Roy Dudidg ine a lot about

37



The most outstanding event, of course, of 1982thasisit to Great
Britain by Pope John Paul 1l which took place &t ¢&md of May and the
beginning of June. Before the great event thereofi@durse been much
preparation. In the parishes it was supposed todly spiritual, and at St
Paul’s we took part in the monthly Deanery Mass#d i different
churches, in the Mission for and in the Family vihigeant the family
using a special leaflet prepared by the Deanenrgthay with St Luke’s
Gospel. Both this and. the leaflets were givenfag. Those of our
Singing groups willing to take part in the practiceere invited to join the
Papal Choir for Heaton Park, and six of our paadshrs were specially
commissioned to give out Holy Communion on the gdeg. The Visit as
a whole was a great success, but the local arrasgsmwere less
successful. Both the Choir members and the Extiaang Ministers felt
disappointed and frustrated, and yet-oddly enowggly-glad that they had
been present. To meet the high costs of the Misityeparish was told that
it would have to provide a large sum of money. Quais £1,200. Just
before the Visit | sent a letter to every Cathblozisehold in Poynton
asking for their support to meet this demand, aglthat | thought they
would prefer a single big effort to a series ofl@ctions etc. The result was
magnificent. Without any further pressure, quittumtarily, people
brought their offerings to the Presbytery. | haggastedES per family but
had left them to decide whether that was too mudbwlittle. In the event
£808.54 was given, and a few weeks later a Cofferyimg in the Presby-
tery for the same cause brought in another £144.14.
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Poynton boundary, close to the Brookside Gardenr€evas never
Catholic, being built only around 1600.

The will of Lawrence Warren who owned all Poynterd anuch of
Stockport gives an interesting insight into thehodtity of this district
during the reign of Henry VIII. The will is date®29— Lawrence died the
following year— and in it he bequeathed his solAlmighty God, Our
Lady St. Mary and all the blessed Company of Heaaed he asks for
thirty Masses to be offered immediately after leatti and another five in
honour of the Five Wounds. You really cannot getimmore Catholic
than that !

His descendants, however, eventually acceptedrtited®ant faith,
though we do not know when. At the time of the déteanvasion of
England in 1745 Bonnie Prince Charlie passed d¢m&oynton on his
way to Macclesfield after the capture of Mancheatet Stockport. It was
then that the Warrens of Poynton together withhallLords of Cheshire
and Shropshire made the definitive decision tolofeally with the “Old
Faith” when they opted to support the Hanoveridihgs meant that all
their dependants became firmly Protestant, if thege not that before.

About 1550 Poynton Hall was built close to the Pdmbugh there may
have been earlier buildings on the same site. $tneplaced about 1750
by a much larger house, which in its turn was putlewn about 1830. No
new hall took its place, but a large house wag betiween the two
towers of the old entrance-gate, very near to Roy@thapel. This new
dwelling was aptly named “Poynton Towers” and @svstill in existence
well into this century. Just outside the Park enteastood the Vicars
House, on the Stockport side of the present “Bdéad”, and almost
touching it was a row of nineteen cottages fontlekers attached to the
Hall. They were built around 1700 and they weredhginal “Poynton”.
The only road out of it was a track known as “L&mels” which later
became Vicarage Lane and led direct to the Ch&stad, now called
Woodford Road, Poynton. The present road from Risitig Sun” to
Macclesfield was built as a Toll Road in 1762, rhyoat the insistence of
the inhabitants of Bullock Smithy as the preseatéd Grove was then
called. Apparently the original “Hessell Grave” wagravel quarry
belonging to Mr. Hessell near High Lane.

The Warren Family were the Lords of Stockport, Rogrand other
places from 1340 until the death of Elizabeth HaivVarren, the
childless wife of Viscount Bulkeley, in 1826. Sheqoieathed her
Stockport and Poynton estates to the Vernon Famnilthe apparently



mistaken opinion that they were her blood relatidier father Sir George
Warren, had bought the Worth Estates in 1792 ftoerimhpoverished
Downes Family for the sum of £27,000. It was a gash in those days, but
it was a shrewd buy. Coal was the gold of the dagimdustrial
Revolution, and Worth unlike Poynton was extrentai in coal, good
coal and relatively easy to mine. The Warren Familyied most of
Stockport with all its mills and, at the start bétSteam Age, Sir George
had foreseen the importance of having one’s owplgugs coal.. This
brought great wealth to the family and then labethe Vernons when they
succeeded to the estates in 1826. As new minesopereed more miners
had to be found for them and these needed houkedirst miners cottages
were built up Middlewood Road, near the new mia@s, then more in
Park Lane. When the first school was opened in E8Amton Green had
become the centre of the village in place of the dettages at the Park
Gates.

By then Poynton was becoming an important villdgehe Middle
Ages, Hepley and Lostock were little hamlets, buhie early nineteenth
century they were swallowed up by the growing Pogrwith-Worth. By
1801 it all ready had 114 houses and 620 inhabitaditthrough the
nineteenth century it continued to grow as moreesiwere opened, and by
1901 there were 525 families and 2544 personsVillage consisted of
two main roads, London Road and Park Lane, butugdfdall round these
roads other houses were built, though right upnédast War there were
lots of empty spaces, and even more recently there crops growing and
cows grazing on what are now established estatesything in the
Village centred on what one writer described adribghaustible veins of
the best coal. Thus Poynton never was a truly milage. It came into
existence as a mining village.

It is possible that an occasional Catholic livedhie area, but by and
large Poynton was solidly Protestant. This was atmaique for an
industrialised community in great Britain becauls¢h@ough the nineteenth
century the poverty stricken, work hungry Irish lsa¢armed into all the
heavy industries, and with them they brought théh@e Faith. That this
did not happen in Poynton, as it did in Stockp@ldcclesfield and
Bollington, can only have been the result of gosdity of not employing
Catholics on the part of the Warren and Vernon liasi

Mr. Roy Dudley who supplied much of the above infation recalls his
father saying that a Catholic lived and worked ayfon in the early years
of this century, but it was not until 1914 thag first known Catholic
arrived, and by that time Lord Vernon had left. ¥ kneere Thomas and
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Bishop in Malawi presided at the Mass which waspam.,and Fr
Mathews, the Provincial of the Montfort Fathersgwhed before a
packed church, including ten other Concelebrahigeen of my relations
and. Canon Lewis and his wife from St George’seAftards there was a
free Buffet, with a glass of wine for adults andadinge-juice for
children, in the Civic Hall. There was also a cahe®&d then a
Presentation of a Colour TV, a Stereo Radio-Casgdttyer and about
£300 for a future “Holiday-in-the-Sun.” Altogethalbout six hundred
came that night to the Civic Hall. The costs werd from a house-to-
house collection that had. been made previouslgrdtvas a Bar, and Mr
Lawrence Ford. who ran it provided much of the wemewell as many of
the drinks for the clergy. Because the decisiomoid the Celebrations
had been made late, it clashed a little with thesithas Fair which took
place the following Saturday and with the P T A Bawhich had to be
postponed till Saturday 19 December. Everybody veweespecially
myself, was glad and grateful for the Feast.

1982 opened with a new type of News-sheet, thtteof
Redemptorists’ “Sunday Plus.” It has our news pdmn the other side. It
is an experiment, and before the end of the yeasha#t decide whether it
is worth continuing. This is a good opportunityrécord the debt of
gratitude we all owe to the many ladies who hapedyand stencilled the
news-sheets, both past and present. For the lastdars Mrs Sandra
Drinkwater, Mrs Winnie Westwood and Mrs Margaretlehave taken
turns each week to do it ... Excellently !

The news-sheet of 7 February 1982 announced tipoged re-
organization of the Parish Council. This took platéhe Annual General
Meeting of the Parish on 10 March when it was dettithat for the future
there would be a small Guiding Committee of Fout arany more
representatives from the Parish. The Committee cansists of the Priest
as Chairman, Mr Ball as Deputy, Mr Wilson as Treasand Mrs
Westwood as Secretary. Every significant groupmtipé Parish is to
have a representative on the Council, and if l&hercannot be present
they should send a substitute from their grougorésent there are fifteen
such groups, and in future there will be five magtia year.

At the end of March ‘82 the patrtition in the Cortiemal was given an
opening so that penitents, if they so wish, mayertakir Confession
seated and face to face with the priest. It isfr@gg to be popular, with
scarcely a word said by me, especially with thostivg to talk about
some spiritual problem.
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famous Paul, who takes part in a Folk Group Mage @nmonth. They
each play at the 10.30 Mass once a month, withadl gimoup of singers to
lead the congregation. Mrs Julie Johnson and Mré&nd\eate normally
guide the singing.

On 7 June 1981 St Paul's Sharing Group came ingtesmce. It is a
society without rules, obligations, meetings orai{se and yet it works. On
one Sunday a month after each Mass, one of tharieambers of the
Guiding Committee offers to anybody willing to take letter with a little
envelope attached. The following month they dosti®e and also accept
the envelopes that are returned to them. The gl#wt people put into the
envelope some money for the Third World, savedutinosome act of
penance, preferably on a Friday. On the first aansiary of collecting the
envelopes we had already sent just over £1,0000ihé1 Teresa and £275
to Poland, all given through our Sharing Group éopes. At present we
are saving in this way to help the People of Lelbano

On 15 September 1981 one of my dreams came true &/geoup of
ladies who had met in School to discuss the pdigibf starting a Ladies’
Group decided to start there and then by electiognamittee of six to
organize meetings etc. The first of these tookeptat 29 September, and
since then they have met every two weeks of terme-thormally with a
guest-speaker. The numbers have not increased tiltaliya but those in it
want very much to make it succeed ... as | do!

During most of 1981 and now into ‘82 we have begimg to get a real
Parish Meeting-room. The school, even with its,haily partially fulfils
our needs. Because we own some of the School-gsaumiifor other
reasons, we decided that would be the best plabeick building,
however, would cost about £70,000, and so we weted to think of a pre
-fab type. We nearly bought one for £24,000, bahthad doubts about the
guarantee-worthiness of the firm. Eventually weenaavised to try to get
one of the many such buildings that the Educatiathérities have on their
hands because of falling numbers. At present waegetiating with
various Authorities and hope to get something enribar future, We
already have the necessary permissions from theeB#&and the local
Education Authority, as well as outline-planningmission. We even have
Mr Martin Hertzog all lined up to collect and, rélduone as soon as it is
available.

On Sunday 6 December 1981 there were great calaisaif the Ruby
Jubilee of my Ordination to the Priesthood on 8deloer 1941. The idea
was not mine, it came from Pat Hardy, aided andtadbéy Tom Ball and
the members of the Social Committee. Bishop Hardwiam used to be my
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Teresa Whitehead who in that year moved into 6& Pane with their
three children. Three more were later born to theRPoynton. The
children attended Poynton Green School, how théa&Gentre in Park
Lane, and for a time the family attended serviogheé Parish Church on
the assumption that it was the nearest thing thejddind to a Catholic
Church. In those days Poynton was in the Cathalitsp of Edgeley,
Stockport, though there was a chapel-of-ease inreneial Road, Hazel
Grove, which the Whiteheads do not seem to haverkradbout.

In 1924, however, Mrs Whitehead — by then a wideas told of the
new parish of St Peter’s that had started in H&zelre the preceding
year, with Father Kirby the first Parish Priest.olbthe same time she
discovered another Catholic in Poynton, Mrs Masgley lived in
Clumber Road just opposite the old cinema. Betwhem they arranged
with Mr Hallworth who owned a taxi to take the tvealies and the five
remaining children to the 8 a.m. Mass in St Pet&tsmmercial Road,
every Sunday morning. In 1931 the new church ¢te&Ser’s in Green
Lane was opened by Fr Kelly who had succeeded FKiHzy. By then
the taxi owner was using a converted army lorrg bss to take them all
to Mass and the children to Sunday School. In 1@&lWhitehead
achieved her long cherished ambition when she mowtedh house near
the Catholic Church in Hazel Grove. The above imfmiion was given in
a letter from one of her daughters now living inbl. She added that all
the Whitehead children married Catholics and thaheir children and
grand-children are Catholics. She also mentionatldafore they left
Poynton two other Catholics had come there, Mraigimm and Mrs
Hargreaves, but the writer could not find out aimghabout them.

However he does know another Catholic who arrivelaynton in
1931. She is Mrs Agnes Clayton who now lives aCopperfield Road.
Her first house here was one of the nineteen aedtatjthe end of
Vicarage Lane, and she stayed there until they e pulled down in
1937. In 1932 Mr and Mrs Talbot came to Waysides/®with their two
sons, and Mrs Talbot is still living in the sameaise. The following year
the Molloy family moved into Woodford Road, Poyntand they too still
live there.

By 1934 the unthinkable had happened. The “inexitdasPoynton
coal” had run out and the mines were closed. Ihghme year the first of
the Quinn sisters from Cleaton Moor in Cumbria cammBoynton. She
was Mrs Williamson who until 1953 lived in 17 Buleg Road. There
over the next few years she received three mohewsisters, and two of
them, Mrs Lloyd and Mrs Bennett, are still with Astew more Catholics

7



who have since died or left the district also livear around Poynton in
those pre-War years but the total number, inclutiegapsed was
probably less than thirty. They all formed partted parish of St Peter's
Hazel Grove, and by 1936 Fr Kelly, the Parish Rried he must do
something for the Catholics in Poynton.

On Easter Sunday that year Mass was said for ittetifne there in the
home of Mrs Crush who lived in 82 Chester Road. fblewing Easter
Sunday and again later in that year of 1937 Masssaal in the
“Kindergarten” at 62 Chester Road. Soon afterwé&rdselly hired a bus
from Swan’s Chip Shop in Park Lane to take the Qath to the 8 a.m.
Mass every Sunday at St Peters. This however wagnpsuccessful. It
was very early, especially for those Catholics Whd to walk a long way
before getting on the bus. Fr Kelly decided to taet“Corner Café”, now
the Post Office, for Mass every Sunday. This wenfoo about eighteen
months. Sometimes as many as forty would be pregs¢he Café-Mass,
but mostly there would be far less.

She has made herself responsible for doing alitbeand. parquet
flooring two or three times a year in the Churcl Bnesbytery ever since.

This seems an obvious place to mention that gatland of ladies who
take weekly turns to clean the Church on a volynassis. | think this
goes back to the origin of the Church in 1941, plidpeven to the time
of the evacuees. This “Story of St Paul's” wouldvieey incomplete
without an expression of our gratitude to thempkt and present. The
same is also true of those ladies, and even arsiotzd man, who also
take weekly turns to do the Church flowers, agaitumtarily. Not only do
they arrange the flowers, they also provide thamd; @ver the last few
years everybody has noticed the constant improvemeheir
arrangement techniques. Ever since my arrival Miel8 Sugden has
organized the rota for the Church cleaning andltveers.

This is also an obvious place to think of thosédadpast and present,
who have worked in the Presbytery, very especthliyhousekeepers.
Miss Molly Connolly looked after Fr Lynch when hasvin Poynton and
then until her death a short time ago. Fr Hurley kliss Joan Seville till
her death in 1963. Not only was she his housekesperalso supported
him in many of the parish activities, not leastunning the Agnesians.
Miss Tessa Stubbs was his housekeeper from 196titleath in 1980. |
have had Mrs Leech full-time and Mrs Anderson piane, though neither
were involved in parish activities. For the last/fgears Mrs Pat Hardy
has acted as housekeeper for me, as well as ddirigtiane nursing job
and running her own house in the Parklands Estatd¢op of that she is
involved in many parish activities and money-raijssichemes; and she
has shown a. remarkable flair for thinking up ndeas and organizing
their operational details. Much of what follows noame from that flair
of hers.

1981 saw the start of several new ventures, so moithat we made a
rule that nothing may take place unless it has be#ten in the Parish
Diary or Planner so that people can check whdtesady arranged before
fixing another meeting. Life was getting impossible

On 9 February 1981 we had our first meeting ofrién Discussion
Group. This started as a spin-off from a serielsapften Talks | gave in
1980. The Discussion takes place once a monthsegms to be doing a
lot of good to those who attend. Almost at the séime we reorganized
the Church Music. Till then Mrs Dolan had been sole organist. Now
we have her and we also have Mr Peter Doyle ohdhmonium, Mrs
Margaret Meech on the piano, and Mr Bob McCartaegousin of the
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successful, and so at the end of 1981 we decidéldeoradical solution of
building a new sloping roof over each of the fladdis. This involved
rebuilding the parapets and much of the wall okierftont entrance to the
Church. The whole job, completed in the Spring8&, ‘cost £4,000. The
white lettering which is the distinctive sign ofrathurch, had first been put
up in July ‘78 to let people know where our chungs. It had to be
repaired and re-fitted after the roof job was fieid. The Presbytery too
had needed repairs, especially on its numerousdtds, which altogether
had cost several thousand pounds. It is a deaujoing a parish !

In June 1980 the Church was decorated. There \easathimmediate
outcry for a red carpet to go with the red paintmogehind the Tabernacle.
This, in its turn, induced Miss Hilary Jarvis, atsd by her Mother and
Aunt, to make new red covers for the altar, kneederd stools. In August
1980 she also presented us with a beautiful whiaedwestment she had
made, and then for Easter 1981 she made all tlsemtrevhite albs for the
Servers, to replace their old and tatty cassocissarplices. About the
same time Mr Tony Bowers made for us the presést eandlesticks. For
that same Easter we also had new sanctuary fugniunew lectern (given
in memory of Miss Stubbs), new stools (in memorywofBower’s sister
and the Neate’s relations) and a new hymn-board.

All the sanctuary furniture, including the kneelaheady there, were
treated so that they all match the Baptismal Fdritlvwas then placed, for
the first time, in the sanctuary. This matchingitneent was donated in
memory of Claude Westwood by his wife.

As a result of all these improvements there wasntiiog pressure to
cover the floor-boards under the benches, thahgih had always remained
bare At first we decided to carpet the aisles@ndino under the benches,
but this provoked much discussion. After a lot @fisultation, especially
with our church-cleaners, the Parish Council detitiat we would make
do with the lino on the aisles and put new linoamthe benches. The
money saved through not buying carpets would betsedrelp the Third
World. In February 1981 the present red lino wad land soon afterwards
we sent the money to the Third World, £400 to Motheresa of Calcutta
and £400 to CAFOD. For many months afterwards e to rid the lino
in the aisles of the polish and dirt that had aadated there over a period
of many years, but in vain. Eventually Mr David Himnought a big
industrial sanding machine and he himself useal sctape the lino.
Afterwards he had to reseal the lino so that it iddake polish. Mrs
Barbara Downs, our industrious and popular Schaottaker, then worked
hard. on it, and gradually she brought it to th#idnt polish it has today.
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THE CINEMA CHURCH 1939-1941

The first cinema in Poynton had been opened in 1822as built by
Mr Bailey on land that until then had been an ordhl was situated at
the junction of Clumber Road and the “new” BulkeRgad opened in
1902. In 1923 Mr Bailey constructed a small cottaget to the cinema
with a shop attached to provide his patrons withet®and tobacco.
Together and enlarged they now form the Presbyidrg.newly built
hose and shop were bought by Mr and Mrs Casemaooestalyed there
until 1936. In that year they rented the premisddit and Mrs White who
lived there till Mrs Casemore sold it to Fr Hurliey1963. Mr and Mrs
White then moved to 16 Brookside Avenue where 8iiidive, while
Mrs Casemore lives in Shrigley Road. The cinemaguieso popular and
profitable that Mr Bailey decided about 1937 tolthai bigger and better
one on London Road which he called the “Brookfiektid is now the
garage of the same name.

As far as the writer can judge, when the cinemaiecvacant it does
not seem that Fr Kelly or anybody seriously congdeurning it into a
church. The Catholics were so few and cinemas cespethe early
cinemas, are notoriously difficult to convert ioything. Fr Kelly stayed
in St Peters until 1946 when he became ParishtRrii&&t Werburgh's,
Birkenhead where, as Canon, he died in 1972. Uikeaasish Priests of
the time he must have written his weekly noticewlrat we called “The
Notice Book”. These books were usually the maira®wof information
concerning the past history of the parish. Unfaatety all the Notice
Books of St. Peter’s between the years of 193alitlut 1950 are
missing, and this is a grievous loss for the hystdrSt. Paul’'s Poynton.
They must contain many things of interest to usfamm them we would
be better able to reconstruct exactly what happeeeslin those vital
years of our history. What follows is the storyfasas the writer can
reconstruct it from some quotations, bills andeletthat Fr Peters, the
present Parish Priest of Hazel Grove, found for; fitom the memories of
Fr Wrangham, a Salesian priest now living at tlmilege in Pott
Shrigley who came from there to say Mass for trecege children in
Poynton; and from the memories of Mrs Derbyshirewas Miss
Margaret Egan, was one of the teachers with theumes.

On the morning of Friday, 1 September 1939, twasdagfore the
outbreak of war, six teachers and about two hundnddren from Sacred
Heart School, Gorton, Manchester, met at Belle Station at 5 a.m. for
an unknown evacuation centre. The same thing wasemeng all over the



country, though perhaps at a more reasonable titi@erhaps with some
knowledge of where they were going to. One of tkéeachers Mrs
Monica Brennan, with the help of her teacher hudlvaimo was also being
evacuated, though to a different place, had spktiteapreceding days
closing up their home in preparation for an indigéi absence. On the
morning of 1 September she said goodbye to herdmasand turned up
with the rest at Belle Vue Station. At 7 a.m. teaashand children were
deposited at Poynton Station which was about 10@sylsom the Brennan
home at 80 Chester Road. That same lady had matbeyhof another kind
a few tears earlier when she had contested initileeourts the then
prevalent custom of dismissing a lady teacher omragriage. She won her
case against the managers of Sacred Heart Schaoh was why she was
with the evacuees that morning. She stayed in Baytilt her death there
in 1960.

The evacuees were all given food in a nearby Imalithe rest of the day
was spent trying to get the children and teachiresl fup with Poynton
families willing to take them. About fifty boys amhe teacher went to the
Salesian College and the rest eventually foundranoadation in Poynton-
with-Worth.

Mr Hughes, the Headmaster, was a very worried maa;one of his big
worries was how he was going to get his teached<hitdren to Sunday
Mass in a place that had no Catholic Church. Wepcasume that he
contacted his own priest in Gorton and also thallBarish Priest in Hazel
Grove. We know for certain that he eventually cotetd the Salesians in
Pott Shrigley to say that he had managed to hiliswsed cinema and
would they provide a priest to say Mass for them.e@her the first or
second Sunday after their arrival the SalesiansFaher Slyth to say
Mass for the Poynton evacuees and he did the samtiesf next one or two
Sundays. Then Fr Wrangham took over the task amd ewery Sunday for
nearly two years. Mr Hughes would collect and btimg back by car, and
Mrs Massey from Clumber Road would give him hisalifast. In those
days one “fasted from midnight” before going to Goumion.

On Saturday, 2 September 1939, the mothers amdrehiunder five
arrived in Poynton from the Sacred Heart ParisBafton, and these too
were given lodgings in the village. Most of therowever, did not stay
long, partly because of family reasons and pastigalbise of the problems
caused by having to share the kitchen and all ther dacilities with the
“lady-of-the-house”. In those days Poynton wast had been for the
preceding century, basically a mining village amel vast majority of the
people were poor, living in fairly primitive continhs. Most of the evacuee
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the Congress itself. Afterwards he tried hard tiotlge Congress findings
discussed and acted upon at Deanery level.

Over the years there had been various attemptaréihg something
for the Youth. Both Fr Lynch and Fr Hurley had dri@nd in March 1979
Mr John Carter and Mr Andrew Neate, as an offsiobtheir SV P
activities started a Youth Group for between thesagf eleven and
fourteen. Later Mr Paul Varetto joined them. The@r met every second
Sunday, at first in homes, then in the School-tmit,always as a Church-
group. It was very successful and popular, ancai with regret that we
saw it stop at the beginning of 1982 because ofliffieulties that had
arisen. However, by then there were other possédsliSt Paul’s
Brownies had their first meeting in January 1980airthe leadership of
Mrs Joan Dawson, a mother of five young childreithwWirs Julie
Johnson as her Deputy. Soon afterwards, when thes@afamily moved,
Mrs Johnson took over the Brownies who have goom ftrength to
strength ever since. The Cubs started in the Séygteai that same year
with Mrs Liz Healey, supported by her husband,harge until June 1982
when Liz’s failing health forced her reluctantlyresign. One of our ex-
Altar Servers, Mr Paul Whitehurst will, we hope saeplace her. Mr
Peter Dugdale started the Scouts on 12 Novembdr, He8 so far we
have been unable to find a leader for the Guidewarg to start. Both the
Cubs and Scouts are very popular and successink$hmainly to the
devotion of their leaders and helpers.

Since 1974 we have had two Episcopal Visitatiots first in July
1977 was by Bishop Brewer who confirmed forty foréldren; and the
second was when Bishop Grasar confirmed fifty Gliddren on 29 June
1980. It was sad to think that it would be his lasit here as Bishop. He
had recently resigned for health reasons. For msopally it was a great
blow, because | had known him well since our sttidierys in Rome
before the War, and it was he who had invited medgnton. The blow
was, however, softened to a certain degree wham aberwards we
heard. that Bishop Gray was to succeed him. | hadted in his district
of the Liverpool diocese for some years before ogmo Poynton, and |
liked him very much.

Repair work never ceases on our parish propertgufAb976 a
massive job of strengthening the church-foundatimtame necessary
because of the mine-shafts underneath. It cosiyn€zi000. Soon
afterwards we had bad leaks in the old Projectamm. It has two small
flat-roofs, one at either end, and these hare besnrce of constant
trouble. Twice since 1975 we have had costly wankedthat was not
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build a school-hall, another classroom and sontetspiand also to
complete the field-drainage and. landscaping. There still many
formalities to go through, but eventually the warks completed for the
beginning of September 1979 at a cost of aboutdD0 0f which we had
to find about £12,000. These extensions have bggead boon, especially
the hall which we also use for social events. Mp@gple worked hard to
get the necessary permission to build, but nonggnahan Mr John
McNamara of Disley who was the parents’ represaetan our School’s
Board of Managers till November, 1979.

Another two of St Paul’s customs started arounsltime. The first was
the much loved Christmas Crib and. Easter Tabledlid Presbytery
porch. Mrs Anne Turnbull, aided by her husband @knmamade all the
figures, and ever since Christmas 1978 they hatldudfly and tastefully
installed and dismantled them each time. Mr Neilérer put in the
fluorescent lighting which has its own automatitig so that the figures
can fulfil their purpose of reminding the passeysabnight as well as
during the day of the true meaning of ChristmasBaster. The lighting is
also used on occasion for more mundane purposgs asuadvertising
Fairs and the like.

The second custom was the use of a P A systenayacpksette-hymns
in Church. Mr Bill Broadbent, who was the Head bhfe UK, donated it
to us in July 1979. He died of leukaemia at theafddty on 5 June 1981.
Singing via cassettes, in spite of some initiallstephas now become an
accepted part of our life. We find them particitarseful to sustain weak
singing and also to teach new hymns. They are atsedery 8.30 and 6
o’clock Mass on Sundays, and occasionally at dihers. More recently
we have also started to use the P A system foiqsipeaking, especially
by children, and by all at the 10.30 Mass.

The first National Congress in England took plateiverpool in May
1980, but all during the preceding year it was pqrepared. At St Paul’s
we eventually settled for Parish-questionnairectviatere compiled by a
small group of parishioners together with a peti@ke were given out at
roughly two monthly intervals at the end of evergdd on one Sunday, and
everybody over sixteen was asked to stay after Megaswer the twenty
or so questions (to find time for this the sermad been reduced to two
minutes). In this way we managed to get the vielhsmething like 85%
of the adults present at Mass, views that werthalmore frank for being
anonymous. The results of the questionnaires anthef meetings were
eventually sent to the Congress Centre and Mr TafhrBpresented the
Catholics of Poynton adequately and those of WhBhgyge nominally at

30

children stayed however, though there was alwdhmarickle of them
going home for good, especially when the expecliézkb and bombing
failed to materialise for the first year of “thequiey war’, as the
Americans called it. Clumber House in Dickens Lesaes the official Sick
Bay for all the evacuees during the whole of te&y in Poynton.

At first the Sunday Mass in the old cinema seenfsat@ been
exclusively for the evacuees and their relatioge Building which was
only rented, was exactly as it had always beergmor the altar erected
in front of the screen. The aisles sloped shamt/itae seats, to the
delight of the children, tipped up and were “plushfiere were toilets at
the back, which was another novelty for childreSanday Mass.

Schooling too had its problems. At that time thendgm School was
the only one in Poynton. From September 1939 ahtiut the end of May
‘40 It was a State school in the morning and a @atlschool in an
extended afternoon for one week, and then theviioligp week the
morning was for the Catholics and the afternoonghe Poynton
children. The teachers from both schools were grpldo fill in the
missing school-hours each day by taking their childor games, nature
walks etc. The evacuee children who had faredwest those who hail
been sent to the Salesians. There they had excildlities and, as one
teacher put it, they were given "a Public Schoalcadion all the time
they were there.”

By May 1940 there were only about one hundred exachildren left
in Poynton, and so it was decided to turn the MdigidHall in Park Lane
into a Catholic school with three or four teachémghis way both schools
were able to revert to normal school hours. Thiregsained like that for
the next eighteen months, with the trickle retugrtimme for good
steadily eroding the number of evacuees left Hgydhe end of 1941 they
were so few that the Manchester Authorities, whib nathat time erected
air-raid shelters in all their schools, decidedais time to open them
properly. Those children whose parents wanted tioestaly “on
evacuation” were reorganised, and the rest werk bame. In Poynton
about thirty five children stayed, and Mrs Brenmaas given a classroom
in the Vernon School for the rest of the War. Maifithe boys with the
Salesians also elected to stay, and some of thibigosback there to visit
the place.

It is possible that the Corner Cafe Mass contirfoed time after the
arrival of the evacuees, but early in 1940 Fr Ketlrted negotiating the
purchase, of the old cinema. A letter dated 21 F3=® from an architect
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named Mr Reynolds, whose widow is now living inB®@okfield Ave,
assured the priest that the building was in aivelt satisfactory con-
dition. By then, however, it looked and felt dratygand dilapidated. Fr
Wrangham recalls the terrible winter of 1939/'4@ &ow one Sunday he
had to walk all the way to Poynton for Mass becaidbe ice and snow.
When he arrived he found that nobody thought heldvoake it, and so he
finished by saying Mass for two ladies! While thieetna was rented Mr
Bailey was responsible for providing central hegtiout in the great
freeze-up of 1940 all the radiators burst. BotMFanghart and Mrs Dolan
tell of the congregation crouched freezing in thbeated chapel while
Mass was said, with their feet on two inches oidsice and the sloping
aisles making a death-trap for the elderly and avide-sent slide for the
evacuee children.

The central heating ,was never repaired and thiénlgefar many winter
weeks was a single tiny oil-stove brought by onthefcongregation. It
was this state of affairs that induced Fr Kellyrtake heating one of his top
priorities for the old cinema, even before he dbtumught it. In March
1940 the Stockport Gas Works quoted £71-18-0 fppsrng and fitting
twelve gas radiators in satin-bronze finish, with086 reduction if a local
contractor fitted them. Mr Leonard Martin who wiits wife lived in Bridle
Road, Woodford, fitted them and thus brought theepdown to £64-14-8.
The installation of the “hanging gas heaters”, abl#rley described them,
was greeted with great relief, even if their appeae left much to be
desired.

In May 1940 “the freehold premises known as The Ciltema
Poynton” was purchased by Fr Kelly for £525, arelgblicitors fees
(Hoskins of Liverpool who are still our solicitorglere £12-5-6. In July
1940 the building was insured for £500 (In 198&at insured for
£150,000!) and the decision was made to dividettieinema in two, the
front part to be the church and the rear end ta Barish-hall. In November
1940 estimates for this work were accepted fromdvieBeace & Norquoys
of Ancoats, Manchester for £1,385. A first paymeint£450 was made in
March 1941, a second for £950 in December of that.yand the final
payment of £232 in October 1942, bringing the totat of converting the
cinema into a church and hall to £1,653. It waast amount for those days
when the average labourer was earning about £3k am the return-fare
by the 20 Bus from Poynton to Manchester was 10) @ut it ensured that
the Catholics in Poynton not only had a churchefrtown for the first
time since the Reformation, they had a hall ofrtbain as well.
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young babies to meet each week in the morning tBoeetimes as many
as twelve mothers tuned up, but often far less emedtually in 1981 it
too ceased to function, due to lack of support.

At the end of May we held an Afternoon of Charism&enewal, led
by Fr St John and Sister Rosemary from Loreto Cotves a result of
this we started the first of what turned out tcaleeries of prayer-groups.
None of them proved to be very popular but siney thbviously catefor
the needs of some we have always encouraged anywlhicyg to try. At
present there is a small group of ladies who nretiié morning. On two
occasions we also tried ‘Healing Services”. Thstfivas a great success,
but hardly anybody turned up for the second, andhawe not tried it
again since.

In October 1977 the first Parish Mission in thetdrig of St Paul's was
given by Fr Jim Carroll O M I for twelve days. He@rked very hard and
it was very successful. Five years latethatbeginning of July this year,
Fr Conor Harper S J, whose sister Mrs Joan Dys@s iin the parish,
gave the second mission. It was less well. atterdiesl perhaps to the
holiday season, but it too produced effects of grac

Even before | came to Poynton | had felt that Extdlaary Ministers
of Holy Communion were essential in a single-priggtish for when he is
sick or away. We had, however, to wait till 11 Deber 1977 before we
got our first. He was Mr Tony Bowers who was consiased by the
Dean, Fr Mooney, during the 10.30 Mass that daytf@next two and
a half years he was my indispensable helper botagesds Holy
Communion and also as regards the endless D | ¥heldid about the
Church and Presbytery. Eventually we decided weeenore
Extraordinary Ministers, and on 23 April 1981 Mraivé Worswick and
Mrs Vana Isherwood were commissioned by the newnDEaDavenport.
Shortly afterwards, in May 1982, he also commissibMrs Margaret
Neate. These Extraordinary Ministers were accelpyettie Parish without
the slightest problem, and now they are simply patihe scene.

On 19 December 1977 Mrs Vanda Isherwood. was atgabin
Headmistress of our School to replace, on 1 A@18, Mrs Hawkins
who had accepted the headship of a large StatelschBredbury. Mrs
Isherwood proved to be a most successful Headbeimg) herself actively
involved in the life of the Parish she did muchniggrate fully the School
and its activities into the mainstream of pariga-ihere it belongs.
Within a few days of her appointment we receivesribws we had hoped
for, prayed for, worked for, made ourselves nuisarfor, over several
years - the news that the Education Authoritiesevgming to allow us to
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years it has done a great dealtfoe School and gradually it has become
more and more a part of parish-life.

The Parish Council branched out into several cotesst but most of
them were either for temporary needs or else taggd to take off.
However, some of their initiatives have blossom#d lasting features.
One such is the Estate and Management Committezhyinder Mr
Mulroy has been responsible for the property balanp the Parish.
Another is the Social Committee. Ever since 194tdlnad been various
groups who worked hard to promote social eventssdh activities were
merged into the work of the Social Committee, urtderwing of the Parish
Council. From 1975 Mrs Young and her group of hedgmntinued what
they had already been doing, then with the depadtithe Young family
to Scotland in 1976 Mrs Enid Parrott, Mrs Neta Radrand Mrs Vanda
Isherwood took over this charge, to be joined safter by Mr Tom Ball.
They have done and are still doing great work lierRarish, both socially
and financially, raising for the last few years abf1 ,000 annually.

Two of the now familiar customs of St Paul’s stdrite 1976.
Encouraged by the Parish Council’s Liturgy Grolgegan going straight
from the altar after the Sunday Masses, still istveents so as not to miss
those leaving early, to greet the people as theégherch. It started off as a
Lenten penance but turned out to be a most enjeyadékly encounter.

The other custom was “Sunday-time”. We all feltt tthee readings and
sermon did nothing for very young children, andvese delighted when on
28 March ‘76 Mrs Barbara Goldney with other laditarted taking turns
each week to take children aged about six to thpeuroom’ (the old
Projection-room) for their own service of prayes®ries and hymns during
the first part of the 10.30 Mass. Later Mrs Jeai@nggton reorganized the
scheme to cater fathildren between the ages of three and seven.eAt th
end of their little service and before going toitiparents, these now join
the Offertory Procession and bring to the Priestork they have done
while upstairs.

St Paul's S V P was started in November 1976 byMgh Gallacher
who lived just outside the parish boundary. It sadeor the sick and
lonely as well as for the poor, and it did good kvfmr many years. It went
into temporary suspension at the end of 1961 aridrdtas not been
restarted. One of its last acts had been to inseliron rail on the church
steps. This was a gift from Mr and Mrs Neate whoenaeembers of the
group A few months after the start of the S VrPFebruary 1977 Mrs
Birtwhistle launched “Meeting Point” as an oppoityrior mothers with
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THE CHAPEL-OF-EASE 1941 - 1957

On P 13 opposite there is a plan, supplied by Mi&l of the Church
and Hall as they were at the end of 1941 and asrémeained, with slight
changes made by Fr Lynch in 1958, until Fr Hurleadethe whole
building into a church in 1965. The floor-leveltbke church was about four
feet higher than that of the hall, with steps cating the two. In the
church-porch there were more steps going up tadoes leading into the
“Standing-room” of the old cinema, with a woodeih saparating it from
the church and with more steps going down to therfof the chapel. There
were the old emergency exits on either side oh#ik one of which was
later transformed into the present side-door giogess to the Presbytery-
yard. The original exits, however, went right te tiround, without any of
the present steps. These two exit-doors, besidagygiccess to the hall,
were also used whenever there was a Church prooessieft the Church
through the front door, went along Clumber Roadosg the Hall through
the exit doors, then back along the side of Bulk&ead into the church.

The tip-up cinema seats which by 1940 were in a pondition were
replaced by old iron and wood benches bought forfEdm Macclesfield
District Bank as early as April 1940. All this makene fairly certain that
from the beginning of 1940, if not from Septemb@89, Fr Kelly was
completely responsible for everything that wenirothe old cinema,
including the Mass for the evacuees.

A receipt for six shillings for taking Fr Kelly fro Hazel Grove to
Poynton makes it quite certain that the first Miashe reconstructed
chapel was said by Fr Kelly himself on the 9 Noventf41, and that
from then on the priests from St Peter’s were rasitide for the Sunday
Mass until a resident priest was named in 1957hByend of 1941 the
number of Catholics in Poynton had increased. Mot were some of the
children, teachers and grownups from Gorton $tér¢, numbering perhaps
about fifty in all, but by then other Catholics hadme, attracted partly at
least by the relative safety from the by then iasmegly frequent and
ferocious bombing. This last triggered off new exatons, but never on
the scale of 1939 and never again involving otregh@lic schools in
Poynton.

Hardly had the main body of evacuees gone wherhanotvasion of
Catholics descended on Poynton. This came as h oé&lS A
involvement in the War from December 1941 onwavdihin the first
year or so American forces were camped in Poyrtiod many of them
were not only Catholics, but flamboyantly so. Thstfbig American camp
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and provides us with invaluable help. In 1974 tseaVered that extensive
repairs were needed which, for financial reasoad,tb be spaced out
over several years. However, the urgent ones hbd tackled
immediately, and these included replacing mosheffiooring in the front
lounge because of dry rot and decorating the wholese. The total bill

for this work came to nearly £2,000. A lot of wdrad to be done too in
the sacristies which was undertaken by Mrs RongideRand some
helpers. She has continued ever since to take elwdthe Priest’s
sacristy which is as well kept as any convent sgcvas in the past !

One of the first objectives of the new Parish Rmess to try to get the
parishioners actively involved in the running diéir own” parish. For
this two general meetings of the Parish were hettié Methodist Hall in
Clumber Road, kindly lent to us for that purpose2@ May and 25
November 1974. As a result of those meetings waddrSt Paul's Parish
Council which has flourished ever since. The fatshirman was Mr Tom
Young, who was replaced by Mr Bernard Isherwoody whturn was
replaced by Mr Tom Ball. Linked with the Parish @oillwas the
nomination by Fr Jukka of a Parish Treasurer wiodaafter all the
financial books and accounts of the Parish and yetaoly submits to the
Bishop the annual accounts. The Parish Treasuedwasys an officer on
the Parish Council. The first was Mr Lawrence Otdafollowed by Mr
Stan Redman, Mr Leo Turnbull and then Mr Tony Wilsgho holds the
post at present. The Parish Priest is automatitadyPresident of the
Parish Council which in its Constitution existsavise and help him, but
not to take over from him in any sense. The Cauitits for the Parish
Council were approved at a General Meeting of sk held in St
George’s Hall on 26 February 1975 and on that taarted to exist
officially.

For the Holy Week Ceremonies of 1975 the altasnagre removed to
give more room and a better view. As a result ©f some thought we
should get rid of them permanently, and so a fewksdater we held a
referendum as the people were leaving the MassSonday. A
substantial majority were in favour of doing withadlbem. They were
later sold for £40 to a couple from Wythenshawe.

In that same month of May we had for the first tiaté-amily Mass’,
with Folk hymns and sometimes guitars. Mrs Eileemétto started this
and she kept it goindor several years.

St Paul's P T A started in May 1975. The Headméstseoriginal idea
had been to have a group of parents who wouldthelgchool financially
through social activities, but | felt it should ag@roper P T A. Over the
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THE. CONTINUING PROCESS 1974 — 1982.

Fr Hurley left Poynton on Wednesday 1 May 1974, nad same
morning - just before his departure - his succeasdred. They had, of
course, met a few times already to arrangeake-over. The new priest
was, and still is, Fr Wilfred Jukka who belongghe Society of Mary and
Montfort (SMM) and is on loan to the Shrewsburyadise. The title for
this concluding chapter was chosen because heveglibat his main task
is to continue and, if possible, to develop whakyanch and especially Fr
Hurley had started. He is also “the writer” menédrso often in these
pages. Now that we have reached his term of offfiattitle seems
increasingly unnatural because so anonymous. Hartbe following
paces it will be dropped in favour of “We and Oul'and mine.”

It seems odd to include in the ‘Story of St Paulidiat has happened so
recently, but one day it will be history and perhiapmebody in the future
will find it interesting. While 1 was trying to uower what happened in the
early days of St Pauls | often wished that Fr Kediyd my two
predecessors had written their version of the evehtheir day: For this
reason perhaps | could say here that my name civorag-inland where
my Father was born, and that | was born in Livelpihe birthplace too of
my Mother. The reason |, a religious priest, arthia parish is because a
series of severe coronaries made it impossiblenéoto return to the
missions where | had been before for a short tintkvehere my superiors
were planning to send me when | took ill in 1970.

| got off to a bad start in Poynton. About six weelter my arrival |
was rushed into hospital at midnight with a susggcbronary. However,
this turned out to be a false alarm, or perhaps# treated in the nick of
time? After about ten days | was allowed out ondtibon | promised to
rest for another two weeks. On the invitation oReissell at Hazel Grove |
went there for the fortnight, and it says muchPRoynton that since that
date over eight years ago | have not had a siragterdbed. While | was ill
Fr Russell and his curates looked after St. Pavitts great diligence and
kindness, even organizing the Confirmation thaktolace on 16 June
while | was away.

The work and strain involved in a Visitation andn@iomation, for
which | was totally unprepared, may have teenagtla partial cause of the
illness. A very important part of the preparation# Bishop’s Visitation is
the detailed report that must be made on the statk the church property
by a qualified surveyor. Mr Peter Mulroy voluntegte do this for us in
1974, and ever since he has kept a constant chedikpooperty problems
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was in the Park, near Poynton Pool. Then anotheranected in
Adlington, just off the main Road, opposite Strieate, and so inside the
present parish of St. Paul’'s. Many American tro@specially from the
Adlington Camp, used to come to the cinema-chundbaynton, some
times in army trucks, sometimes in fully militarginade.

At the end of 1941 the Catholics, who had scarasaiyed in Poynton
and who had just acquired their first church, fothiemselves in the odd
position of also being the sole possessors oflaialwas open to the
general public for social events. They immediastirted holding dances,
bazaars, socials and other money-raising everas &ffort to repay
something of what Fr Kelly had paid for their chuend hall. In this the
tiny Catholic group received great support fromrdlatively rich
Americans who were generous both in giving to thlkections and also in
attending the social events. In return many ofGagolics welcomed
them into their homes, particularly for breakfasethe Sunday Mass.
From about the end of 1942 the Catholics also dzgdra Canteen in
their little hall every night, with a Whist Drive¢t very popular with the
Americans) and Dance (very popular) every Saturtiglyt, and a Social
Evening every Sunday. All these events were op&véoybody, but they
were organized by the Catholics and patronized Iimbnthemselves and
the American troops.

Mrs Williamson who lived in 17 Bulkeley Road. hde:keys for the
church and hall, and also the responsibility fagkag the vestments,
chalice, altar-wine etc. safe and dry in her ho&ie played a big part in
organising the social events with the other CatisolProviding
refreshments was a big problem in those days iaf sationing, but
somehow they managed, and thus they were able¢aadiair account of
money to Fr Kelly who, in September 1943, had tpgéurther £163
because of dry rot in the floor of the hall.

What the people of Poynton thought about all tiesholics has not
been recorded, but it must have been somethinglbek to them,
particularly when the American troops were eveyuaplaced by Poles
in the camp at Adlington. Ever since Poynton hatbbee a mining
village about 1800 it had been not only solidlytestant but on the whole
quite anti-Catholic, as indeed was most of Engkrttie time. It is said
that Poynton miners led the Stockport Riots in 1862n two Catholic
churches were destroyed and that afterwards thelg mapact in Park
Lane Methodist Church that they would never alloRogish chapel to be
erected in the village. And yet things had so clednduring the War that
the same Church let its hall be used as a Cathclliool and nearly every-
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body in Poynton treated the evacuees with kindardswith active help in
getting them to Mass. The arrival of the Americad &olish soldiers
further helped the Catholic cause. It was not iprféan, but it was during
the War, that an old lady was heard to say wondBrirlYou know, | never
knew the Poles were so Irish.” However, old prejadiand old attitudes
die hard, and even after the War there was stiraamount of distrust of
Catholics. Today, thank God, that is dying out, exedare moving steadily
towards greater trust, sympathy and love.
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not move their children. This too was a disappoeritio Fr Hurley, but

as always he kept on trying. Gradually the numbezpt up. By May 1974
there were fifty five and the school year endedhiity eight children in

St Pauk. By then, however, Fr Hurley had left PoyntonBakenhead to
take up a new appointment as full-time “Officialig’post he had had part
-time while still in Poynton. It meant that he wasomplete charge of all
the matrimonial cases of the Shrewsbury Diocesdharcontinued in this
role until Easter 1982 when, because of his worgghealth, he resigned.
He still continues, however, to help in a part-ticagacity.

This chapter is entitled, “The Eventful Years”the writer's opinion,
the years that Fr Hurley spent in Poynton and tbkyue did in and for St
Paul’'s were the most eventful and the most importaall its history to
date. The Presbytery and the Church, the SchoadthrenBcumenical
Movement of Poynton, every-thing in the life ofghparish, bear his
imprint. He formed and made St Paul's, and we shalllbe extremely
grateful to him.
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compensate, at least partly, for this loss thePotijection room was turned
into a Meeting room by moving the choir and harmaminto the main
body of the church and absorbing a small storerimbonthe new Meeting
room. This took place at the end of 1968, and enfetiowing July Fr
Hurley, with great foresight, bought 52 Clumber Rdéar £3,000. It was
used for a time by his new housekeeper, Miss Tesdabs, but the main
reason for buying it was the land that went witfTiis includes the curious
little building known at present as “The Toy Bowhich in its time has
been used for a Creamery and a Butchery among thiingys, the wooden
garage next to it, and the bits of land in frord &ehind. All this will be
invaluable if ever we need to extend or rebuild dwrch, and in the
meantime it has other possibilities, such as aaita temporary Meeting
room. The old Projection room is not the completsweer to our “Meeting”
needs.

It had always been Fr Hurley's dream to have oun @atholic School,
but it seemed a forlorn hope. St Peter’s got thirsir school only in 1955,
and to do it they had to build it without Governrhbalp? To this day
Wilmslow, which became a parish in 1914, is withis&ibwn school. Yet
Fr Hurley went on applying and lobbying from 1964mards. Helped by a
friendly County Councillor and the Catholic Educatl Authorities,
against all the odds, he succeeded in 1971 whexpaotedly the
Department for Education and Science allocatedd®®b6to build the first
phase of St Paul's Primary School in Marley RoagfoBe the building was
completed in August 1973 the first of the greaafioial crises had hit the
country, and these are still with us. Fr Hurley had made it by the skin
of his teeth: This really was his greatest achiex@nm Poynton and the
one that had the most profound effect in chandiegathole spiritual
atmosphere of the Parish. He had struggled for mpaays to ensure some
form of Catholic instruction for the numerous chédd attending non-
Catholic schools, and for a long time he paid atbuake children to
Bollington Catholic School at no cost to the pasdmtyond what they gave
in voluntary contributions with the other parishéos. Like all priests in his
position he was hurt and disappointed by the ldaooperation on the part
of many parents, but he kept on trying ... anddtehg school.

It was opened in September 1973. The first phasatibe projected
Infant School, with three teaching areas and ael&mctical Area, plus
some other rooms The final bill was just over £80,0f which the Parish
had to give about £10,000. The first Head was Miige&y Hawkins and
there were two other teachers, Miss Lang and Masgtan. On the
Opening Day there were only thirty five childres,many parents would
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THE NEW PARISH 1957 to 1960

The 1931 Census gives the population of Poyntoh-Wibrth as
3,944. It probably stayed about that number fomiine twenty years, in
spite of the closure of the mines. New industresi€ to the Poynton area
and new houses were being built. About 1947 ttet éif the estates was
started. It was built around Copperfield and Bayn@bads. In 1954 the
second, the Distaff Road Estate, was occupied. Méaitiye newcomers
found work in the developing Aircraft Factory at @étford. Among the
new people were a number of Catholics, and otheisalready moved
into the houses on Chester Road and Park LanéeAigginning of 1957
they had grown to about three hundred, and thi8lskdop Murphy,
prompted by Fr Walsh who was then the Parish Poigdazel Grove and
Poynton, to appoint Fr John Lynch as the first$taRriest of St Paul’s.
He was officially installed on Sunday 27 Septenit#s7, and from the 4
October onwards there was for the first time intades a regular daily
Mass. The first Presbytery was 44 Dickens Lane e/iteemained till
1964.

The new parish was fittingly called St Paul’s, itowvas an offshoot of
St Peter’s ,but even more fittingly it could haeeh called ‘Our Lady’s’
or “St Mary’s” for it was the immediate successmttie Catholic Poynton
Chapel of that title. For nearly twenty years thiegis from Hazel Grove
had catered for the spiritual needs of the Poy@tatholics and during all
that time they had also been responsible, throlgih parishioners for the
financial needs of their Poynton out-church. Allaiigh the forties and
fifties the Catholics in Poynton had tried to hpir own finances
through running social events, including Bingo tif-adays and
Saturdays in the late fifties. Even with the intusbf American and
Polish contributions, however, they were unablmet all their
liabilities, and it was St Peter’'s people who bitwe brunt. St Peter’s is
our “Mother-Parish’ and all their priests, includifr Peters, the present
Parish Priest and Fr Russell his predecessor, theere the source of
iImmense support for Poynton. We all owe them atgtekt of gratitude,
especially this writer.

With the advent of Fr Lynch St Paul’s burst intthuary of activities,
both spiritual and social. He was young and zealang he flung himself
eagerly into his many duties, but particularly tbbgetting to know his
flock. Towards the end of the last century CardMahning once said
that England has eight Sacraments, and the eigltie idoor-knocker in
the hands of the priest. Fr Lynch had similar seetits and his people
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responded readily to frequent visits to their hames

Sunday Masses were at 8 and 10 a.m. with evenirgtas at 6.30.
The weekday Masses were at 7.30 a.m. and 9 ondagiturBefore his
arrival Mrs Brennan, teaching then in the Stock@whvent School, was in
charge of the Guild of St Agnes in Hazel Grove.e8alof Poynton
school-girls were in her group so she had a nu@éazembers when she
started the Guild at St Paul's soon after Fr Lyadrtival. The members of
the Union of Catholic Mothers also transferred thelves to the Poynton
branch and induced others to join as well. The tiths loosely interpreted
to include any Catholic lady, and the first presideas Miss Gertie Rourke
who died recently. She had Mrs McDonald, still with as Treasurer. A
branch of the Men’s Guild was also started soceratirds. The Catholic
instruction of the many children in the State sd¢hveas intensified, and the
Novena to Our Lady of Perpetual Succour was stameti3 November
1957.

Along with this spiritual activity Fr Lynch also gerated a great deal of
enthusiasm for social events. The Parish-halléndlld cinema was in
constant use, not only for the Guild meetings arstirliction classes, but
also for concerts, dances, Bingo and the like. Birdances and other
functions were sometimes held outside the parishhéend of 1959 a
Teenage Dance Club was started. It was, howewetJtion of Catholic
Mothers who were the most active. After the seddiads on every Holy
Day of Obligation they ran a Coffee-morning, ocoasily linked with a
Bring-and-Buy Sale. They had frequent Jumble Sahelsthey more or less
made themselves entirely responsible for boostiegdutumn Fair which
had started in a small way some time earlier. Qafiten they had trips for
themselves, either to groups in neighbouring paggir even to things like
the Blackpool Lights. They also went every yealaahort retreat.

Nearly all the social events, including those @& Women, went
towards paying off the Parish debt, which in Decentt®57 was £3,132,
mostly due to buying the house for the priest iokens Lane. The Parish
was divided into districts and an Outdoor Collettveas made in each
district every week, with Fr Lynch doing one distiin turn each week.
Later on Football Pools were also started. Earli988 Fr Lynch was able
to announce that the debt had been reduced toE&260 on 10 May 1960,
not long before he left, he told them that the delat been finally
liquidated. They were big sums for those days,thate were many other
recurring expenses.

Another event occurred early in 1958. The mairr attahurch was
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Episcopal Visitation to St Pauls confirmed thittyee children and four
adults. The numbers were such that it was becomargasingly difficult
to fit them into the tiny church for Sunday MasscArdingly Fr Hurley
began the lengthy preparations for extending theath

The eventual plan saw the absorption of the h#dltine church and
the building of the present Lady Chapel. This measitooring the entire
building to get it on a single level and installithg false ceiling that most
people admire. The three sacristies were constiustd one of the old
exits was walled up and the other turned into a deih steps leading to
the Presbytery. The new altars were ordered artieaivoodwork behind
and above the main altar was made as well as tigeigtefloor of the
sanctuary which was within wrought-iron and woadmtails. All the
sacristy and altar furniture was bought, gas ceheating installed, a
complete electrical rewiring done and finally thieole church was
decorated. Mass was said for the time in the exsnout at that time
unfinished church on Sunday 4th April 1965, andwhele job was
completed by September. The total bill for the rentéstoration cane to
£5,680, but this did not include the benches. These given by the
Doyle family who thus became the donors of alllitkaches in the
church.

To find the money for these and other expensesufel at the end
of 1964, had introduced Planned Giving to the paois means of the
Offertory Envelopes we still use. Besides encourgigieople to use their
discretion and generosity in supporting the chuncich better than the
former collections did, these envelopes are pdatityuuseful to us in
Poynton owing to the kindness of the Hazel Grovesps who always
return to us our envelopes when given in the ctitlas in their church.
Around the same time that the Planned Giving watest the Covenant
Scheme was introduced. Through it the Governmeutne to the
Church, or any recognized Charity, all the tax thatgiver has already
paid on what they are giving. Mr Smith Scoble washarge of the
Covenants when they were first started, and oddmgh in 1973, Mr Jim
Ryder continued his work. For many years now Mr kind Binder have
been doing it for us. From a modest beginning érthd-sixties, it has
now grown to nearly £3,500 a year in income for@meirch which we
would have to find in other ways if the governmemste less helpful
towards deserving Charities.

Although St Paul’s had gained a great deal thraagénding the
church so that it could now hold about 240, comgpanethe 120 while the
church was smaller, the loss of the hall was avgtie blow. To

23



greatly improved and a Lady Altar in wood was pthoext to it, on the
Clumber Road side of the Church. In December dfghme year Mr
Walter Doyle on behalf of his family donated newdiees for the whole
of the church as it existed at the time. To maleafit one of the relics of
the old cinema was taken away - the Standing-rquaneswith its rail and
steps. There were further changes in the porchadrise beginning of
1959 when a new Baptistery was built. In it wasatimade and donated
by Mr McDonough whose wife is still with us. Latewas replaced by
the present beautiful wooden Font that is now e@Sanctuary. The
Baptistery, with its pretty arch and wrought ircates remained in its
original form until Easter of this year when it wamnverted into the Piety
Stall.

On 28 October 1959 Bishop Murphy made the first &giscopal
Visitation to St. Paul’'s. He then confirmed sixtedrnhe parishioners,
most of them children. He was greatly impressedilblyge saw and heard,
not least by the quality of the singing. Even wisriPaul’'s was still a
chapel-of-ease there had been a choir and foreaNss Derbyshire of St
Mary’s Stockport used to travel every Sunday tqg piee harmonium. In
1957 Mr John Hughes from Barnaby Road replaceddmerwhen he was
unable to be present his wife took his place. iratE958 she asked Mrs
Dolma to do it “for this once,” but that once be@apermanent job and
she has been doing it for the Parish ever since.

In June 1960 the news burst like a bombshellttr@aBishop had
decided to move Fr Lynch to Shifnal in Shropshite.had been in
Poynton for less than three years, but in that timéad brought to birth
the new parish, and when he left it was a stromlasty infant.
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THE. EVENTFUL YEARS 1960 - 1974

Fr.Thomas Hurley succeeded Fr Lynch on 24 June.196@vas a B A
and was to become an expert in Canon Law, espeoialtjuestions of
marriage. For many years before coming to Poyntaoifar all the time he
was here he had difficulties with his health, s did not deter him in his

priestly duties. He continued and developed mothefctivities started by

Fr Lynch and he introduced new ones. He was totalflgmitted to the
importance of Catholic education for the young, emldis early years in
Poynton he spent much of his time and energy an Titie social side of
the Parish was also developed, and the Notice Bobis first years here
form a catalogue of such events, held not only@Rarish-hall but also in
the houses of many parishioners and in centregdeut$ Poynton.

Soon after his arrival Fr Hurley discovered thag ohthe most pressing
needs was a new roof for the Church. Like mostroasebuilt in the
twenties and thirties the owners had wanted quiokitp rather than a
monument to serve posterity; and Poynton was negian. Over the
years we have had quite heavy bills for repairsekMhwas built the roof
timbers had not been made to take slates. Theadio$tvas made of
asbestos tiles, but by 1960 these were in suchrasate that the whole
building needed reroofing in some light materialridg February and
March 1962 this was done in cedar shingles, lightéight but
‘guaranteed’ to last sixty years. The cost was £80@ recent letter Fr
Hurley recalls a Catholic falling off the roof dog the job and escaping
unhurt.

A little earlier on 3 December 1961 Mrs Gilpin, whad been in
Poynton since the late thirties and had worked mamdany charitable
causes, especially the Catholic one, presentesixh®g candlesticks that
are still on either side of the Tabernacle as tngpgift in memory of her
parents. In the following October the lovely woodtatue of Our Lady
that is still in Church was given by Mr and Mrs lt@ain memory of their
daughter Eileen who had been killed at the agevefhty in a car crash in
December 1961.

In 1963 Fr Hurley heard that the Whites who rerked“Cinema Shop”
in Bulkeley Road were thinking of giving it up. legentually agreed with
the owner, Mrs Casemore, to pay just under £3,600.fThe Whites were
not unnaturally disappointed that they could ndt‘tee good will price”,
but they got some satisfaction when Fr Hurley bowghtheir entire stock
and then sold it off to his people. On P 22 oppeatiere is an artist's
impression of the house and shop as they wereithttties, described to
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him and me by the daughter of the Whites who wesnty here on
holiday. It looks big, but in fact it was “all Frpnconsisting of two
downstairs rooms next to one another. One washthe, iow the Priest’s
Study, with above it a small bedroom and storercamd; the other was
the living room with above another small bedrooretvig2en the shop and
house was the front door, with the stairs leadiffigt.0At the back of the
shop there was a tiny kitchen ("eight feet by fotine daughter’'s husband
said) and directly above it an equally small babhnoThe toilet was
outside in a yard that was bigger than today’sr&keas also a large
garage, separated from the shop by a passage.

Fr Hurley’s architect built a good sized kitchermioel the sitting-room
and a housekeeper’s sitting-room behind the shag, this last he put a
big bathroom. The old garage was replaced by gtieceroom, now
used as a counting-room, and over this he addatiemiosedroom, linking
everything with a corridor upstairs and down. Tésutt was a lovely,
homely house, not pretentious but adequate. Thevations cost £2,850,
but it meant that for the first time the priest waxt to the Church and the
Blessed Sacrament.

Fr Hurley moved into his new Presbytery on Tuesddgnuary 1964,
and the following Saturday there was a solemn lrigssf the new house
in the presence of some parishioners and the tg@mitved Vicar of St
George’s, the Rev Bob Lewis, and his wife Joanh lebtwhom are still
here. In those days such encounters with “our s¢géubrethren’ were
rare, and Fr Hurley and Canon Lewis both date ¢hébirth of
Ecumenism in Poynton from that day.

On Sunday 23 February 1964 at the 4.30 Servicer&tigd of the
Order of St Francis solemnly erected the presexiidsis of the Cross.
These fourteen beautiful bronze images cost £98{ftmoney for them
was raised by the young girls in the Guild of ShAg through various
functions, under the inspired leadership of MissnJ8eville. She was Fr
Hurley’s housekeeper who had given up her nursanger to look after
him. She died of cancer at the age of thirty twd.6rAugust 1963. She
saw the Stations before her death, and there \pexiad prayers for her
during the Blessing ceremony. Later they went doliéek, but Mr Kevin
Molloy cleaned and lacquered them very successtlullyng Lent 1979.

By 1964 the expansion of Poynton had begun in sarhany of the
Estates had been or were being built, especiadlyethwithin easy distance
of Poynton Place. Fr Hurley reckoned that by them&d six hundred
Catholics, and on the strength of those numberadde his first
application for a Catholic school. In that yeartip Grasar in his first
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